
5252 

 CITY OF NORTH POLE 
Regular Meeting 

November 4, 2024 
City Hall Chambers 

125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska 
www.northpolealaska.com 

Monday, November 4, 2024 
Committee of the Whole: 6:30 PM 

Regular City Council Meeting: 7:00 PM 

MAYOR CITY CLERK 
Larry Terch III Emily Braniff, CMC 
907-488-8584  907-488-8583 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Chandra Clack 907-460-3767 
Jeffrey Jacobson    907-460-7733 
Benny Williams  907-388-5911 
Ellen Glab 660-464-1072 
Santa Claus  907-388-3836 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Invocation

4. Approval of Agenda

5. Approval of the Minutes from October 21, 2024

6. Communications from the Mayor
a. Appreciation Award – Sam Sanders, Fire Department
b. Lifesaving Award – Tasmine Gregory, Lifesaving Award Police Department
c. Reorganization of City Council

7. Council Members Questions of the Mayor

8. Citizens Comments (Limited to five (5) minutes per Citizen)

9. Communications from Department Heads and Borough Representative

10. Ongoing Projects Report

11. Unfinished Business
a. Ordinance 2024-08 – An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska Amending the 2024

Budget to Reflect Grant Funds
12. New Business

a. Ordinance 2024-09 – An Ordinance of the North Pole City Council Establishing the 2025 
Operating and Capital Budget and Levying the Mill Rate

b. Request to Council – Approve Dispatching Contract Renewal

http://www.northpolealaska.com/


 

13. Executive Session – Flint Hills Settlement  
 

14. Council Comments 
 

15. Adjournment 



Regular City Council Meeting 
October 21, 2024 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   Minutes 
October 21, 2024 
 NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
 
 

Mr. Hu  
  
Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 
 
A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, October 21, 2024, in the North Pole City 
Hall Council Chambers. 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
Mayor Clack called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, October 21, 2024, to order at  
7:00 p.m. 
 

Present:             
Chandra Clack  
Anton Keller – Mayor Pro Tem 
Larry Terch III– Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Benny Williams 

 
Dave Skipps 
Santa Claus 
Ellen Glab 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 
Led by City Clerk Emily Braniff 
 

INVOCATION  
Given by Mr. Williams  
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
Mr. Terch moved to approve the agenda of October 21, 2024 
 

Seconded by Mr. Jacobson   
 

Mr. Jacobson moved to amend the agenda to place Ordinance 2024-08 – An Ordinance of the City of North 
Pole, Alaska Amending the 2024 Budget to Reflect Grant Funds, Resolution 2024-09 – A Resolution of the City of 
North Pole City Council Designating City Officials Authorization to Sign on City of North Pole Accounts and City 
Snowplow Services – Contract Renewal on the Consent Agenda 
 

Seconded by Mr. Williams 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

Jeffrey Jacobson  

 



Regular City Council Meeting 
October 21, 2024 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   Minutes 
October 21, 2024 
 NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
 
 

• Ordinance 2024-08 – An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska Amending the 2024 Budget to 
Reflect Grant Funds 

• Resolution 2024-09 – A Resolution of the City of North Pole City Council Designating City Officials 
Authorization to Sign on City of North Pole Accounts 

• City Snowplow Services – Contract Renewal  
On the Agenda 
DISCUSSION 
None 
PASSED 
Yes: Skipps, Williams, Jacobson, Terch, Keller, Clack  
No: 0 
Absent: 0 
 

On the Agenda, as Amended 
DISCUSSION 
None 
PASSED 
Yes: Terch, Williams, Keller, Jacobson, Skipps, Clack  
No: 0 
Absent: 0 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Mr. Keller moved to approve the minutes from the October 7, 2024, meeting. 
 

Seconded by Mr. Williams 
 

On the Minutes 
DISCUSSION 
None 
PASSED 
Yes: Jacobson, Terch, Skipps, Keller, Williams, Clack 
No: 0 
Absent: 0 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
Mayor Clack asked Ms. Braniff to read the results of the Municipal Election onto the record.  Ms. Braniff read 
the results of the October 1, 2024, Municipal Election and swore in the new members.   
 

Council Member Ellen Glab gave her Oath of Office. 
Council Member Santa Glaus gave his Oath of Office.  
Mayor Larry Terch III gave his Oath of Office.  
 

Mayor Clack called for a brief 10 minute recess so the new members could take their place at the dais and 



Regular City Council Meeting 
October 21, 2024 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   Minutes 
October 21, 2024 
 NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
 
 

everyone could enjoy some light refreshments.  
 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR  
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS – (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 
Dave Skipps thanked everyone for his eight years on Council and said everyone at the city has been wonderful to 
work with and that he has enjoyed his time of service.  
 

Anton Keller shared how much he has enjoyed being a City Council member and that he looks forward to see how 
the Council restructures going forward.  
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS & BOROUGH REPRESENTATIVE 
 

Police Department, Chief Steve Dutra  
Chief Dutra stated they have had several accidents reported due to the heavy snowstorm that is occurring outside 
and asked everyone to stay safe.  Chief Dutra spoke of training opportunities that are taking place in his 
department and encouraged all Council members to come and check it out.  Chief Dutra shared that Lieutenant 
Jed Smith is doing well at the FBI Academy and that he expects him to graduate up at the top of the class.  
 

Fire Department, Chief Chad Heineken  
Chief Heineken thanked the past Council members for their service and dedication to the City of North Pole.  Chief 
Heineken shared the North Pole High School will be holding their haunted house again this year and shared details 
of the partnership with the students.  Chief Heineken shared information about the students that just graduated 
from the Fire Department Apprenticeship.   
 

City Clerk, Emily Braniff 
Ms. Braniff welcomed Mayor Terch and new Council members Ms. Glab and Mr. Claus to the Council, Ms. Braniff 
reported if anyone would like to fill the vacancy to email Mayor Terch at lterch@northpolealaska.org.  
 

Finance Department, Tricia Fogarty  
Ms. Fogarty stated she sent the financials to Ms. Braniff to forward to all Council members and shared that the 
Finance Department is working diligently on the 2025 City Budget.  Ms. Fogarty reported that Budget meetings 
would be held the following Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday and that dinner will be provided.   
ON GOING PROJECTS 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Mr. Claus stated he is out walking every day and asked everyone to be safe out there.    
 

Ms. Glab stated she looks forward to serving on the Council and to work with the rest of the members.  



Regular City Council Meeting 
October 21, 2024 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   Minutes 
October 21, 2024 
 NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT 
 
 

 

Mr. Jacobson thanked Mr. Keller and Mr. Skipps for their service and congratulated Mayor Terch for becoming 
Mayor and thanked Ms. Clack for stepping up and filling in when the city needed her.  
 

Mr. Williams thanked the new Mayor for stepping up for the City of North Pole and welcomed new Council 
members.  
 

Mayor Terch thanked Mayor Clack, Mr. Keller and Mr. Skipps for their service on Council and shared that he 
looks forward to moving forward with the City of North Pole.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Jacobson moved to adjourn. 
 

Seconded by Mr. Williams 
 

The regular meeting of Monday, October 21, 2024 adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 
These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council on Monday, 
November 4, 2024.   
 
 
 

 
___________________________________ 

        Mayor Larry Terch III 
 
ATTEST: 
  
___________________________________ 
Emily Braniff, CMC 
City Clerk      



Sponsored by: Mayor Larry Terch III 
Introduced October 21, 2024 

Adopted: 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
ORDINANCE 2024-08 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 3 
AMENDING THE 2024 BUDGET TO REFLECT GRANT FUNDS 4 

 5 
WHEREAS, changes to practices and policies is a continually changing 6 
requirement; and 7 

8 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole budget should be amended to conform to the 9 
requirements of the City; and 10 
 11 
WHEREAS, adjustment in the budget are necessary to remain compliant with 12 
Council approved authorizations and budget management rules, and 13 
 14 
WHEREAS, fiscal notes are the method prescribed by the code to amend a 15 
budget; and 16 
 17 
WHEREAS, fiscal notes have been reviewed by the Accountant and Mayor for 18 
accuracy and will be recorded as amendments to the budget upon approval.  19 
 20 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole 21 
that it approves changes as listed in the attached fiscal note to move funds to 22 
Include grant funds that have been accepted by the North Pole City Council. 23 
 24 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not be codified. 25 
 26 
Section 2. Effective date. 27 
This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage. 28 
 29 
ADOPTED THE ___ DAY OF November 4, 2024 30 

31 
32 

________________________________ 33 
Mayor Larry Terch III 34 

35 
ATTEST: 36 
 37 
________________________________ 38 
Emily Braniff, CMC  39 
City Clerk 40 

41 PASSED 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 



 
 

City of North Pole, Alaska 
  Fiscal Note Year: 2024 

Ordinance: 24-08  
 

Originator/Sponsor: Chief Dutra & Tricia Fogarty    

Date: October 15, 2024 
  

 
Does the Ordinance or Resolution have a fiscal impact? 

 
Yes 

 
X 

 
 

Fund- Dept. Account Description Account # Debit Credit Effect 

Fund 11 Wages Full Time 11-10-1-0010 38,300.00  Increase 
Fund 11 Benefits  11-10-1-0030 2,600.00  Increase 
Fund 11 PERS 11-10-1-0040 8,200.00  Increase 
Fund 11 Health Insurance 11-10-1-0130 5,600.00  Increase 
Fund 11 JAG Grant Revenue 11-39-9000  54,700.00 Increase 

      
Fund 43 Smart Water Expense 43-04-9030 350,500.00  Increase 
Fund 43 Smart Water Revenue 43-39-3130  350,500.00 Increase  

      
Fund 32 SHSP 2022 Video Security System 32-10-9-9014 110,000.00  Increase 
Fund 32 SHSP 2022 Grant Revenue 32-39-9030  110,000.00 Increase 

      
Fund 32 SHSP 2023 Security Cameras 32-10-9-9015 119,330.00  Increase 

Fund 32  SHSP 2023 PW Backup Generator 32-10-9-9017 39,000.00  Increase 

Fund 32 SHSP 2023 Physical Security Assessment  32-10-9-9016 35,000.00  Increase 

Fund 32  SHSP 2023 Grant Revenue 32-39-9031  193,330.00 Increase 

 
.    
 
 

Prepared By: Tricia Fogarty _Date:  October 15, 2024  
 
 

Finance Approval: Tricia Fogarty Date:        October 15, 2024_ 
 



































































































Sponsored by: Mayor Larry Terch III 
Introduced & Advanced: November 4, 2024 

Second Reading: November 18, 2024   
Final Reading & Adoption: December 2, 2024   

 

1 
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
ORDINANCE 2024-09 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL 3 
ESTABLISHING THE 2025 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET AND 4 

LEVYING THE MILL RATE 5 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City of North Pole Home Rule Charter Section VI the Mayor has 6 
proposed an operating budget with anticipated income and expenditures of the City during the 7 
next fiscal year; and 8 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 4 Revenue and Finance Chapter 25 the Mayor has proposed 9 
capital and vehicle fleet- reserve fund budgets for the City and City Utility that are contingent 10 
upon council approval of the ordinance reinstating the funding mechanism: and 11 

WHEREAS, The City of North Pole operates a water and sewer utility through an enterprise 12 
fund and thus the Mayor has proposed an operating and capital budget for the Utility with 13 
anticipated income and expenditures of the City during the next fiscal year; and 14 

WHEREAS, The City of North Pole has established budgets for the City Debt Service, Non-15 
Major and Community Funds that are outside of the general operating, capital and vehicle fleet- 16 
reserve budgets; and 17 

WHEREAS, The Budget is a living document that needs to be adjusted as needed to reflect 18 
actual conditions; and, 19 

WHEREAS, The 2025 Budget reflects a 3.5 mill rate; and  20 

WHEREAS, The 2025 Budget reflects sales tax rate of 5.5 percent; and 21 

WHEREAS, The 2025 Budget has no increases to the sales tax or the mill rate. 22 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 23 

Section 1. This ordinance is of a special nature and shall not be included in the North Pole Code 24 
of Ordinances. 25 

Section 2. There is hereby appropriated to the 2025 General Fund Operating Budget (Fund 1) 26 
from the following sources of revenue for the City of North Pole in the amount indicated to the 27 
departments named for the purpose of conducting the business of said departments of the City of 28 
North Pole, Alaska, for the fiscal year commencing January 1, 2025, and ending December 31, 29 
2025 30 
  31 



Sponsored by: Mayor Larry Terch III 
Introduced & Advanced: November 4, 2024 

Second Reading: November 18, 2024   
Final Reading & Adoption: December 2, 2024   

 

2 
 

Revenue Source 
 

Mayor 
Recommended 

Council  
Appropriation 

Taxes: Property  1,300,000 1,300,000 
Taxes: General Sales 5,405,000 5,405,000 
Taxes: Alcohol 330,000 330,000 
Taxes: Online 600,000 600,000 
Taxes: Tobacco 100,000 100,000 
Taxes: State collected Shared Taxes 15,000 15,000 
Licenses and Permits 34,000 34,000 
Fees & Services 1,108,800 1,108,800 
Fines & Penalties  140,000 140,000 
Intergovernmental Revenue 202,000 202,000 
Other: Miscellaneous 341,000 341,000 
Transfers in From Fund Balance (FB) 0 0 
Transfer In (from other funds)   7,500 7,500 
Total  9,583,300 9,583,300 

 32 
Section 3. There is hereby appropriated to the 2025 General Fund Operating Budget (Fund 1) 33 
expenditures for the City of North Pole in the amount indicated. 34 
 35 

Department Expenditures Mayor Recommended Council Appropriated 

Administration 973,755 973,755 
Clerk & HR 376,685 376,685 
Police Department 3,339,610 3,339,610 
Fire Department 3,592,250 3,592,250 
Public Works 1,301,000 1,301,000 
Total  9,583,300 9,583,300 

 36 
Section 4. There is hereby appropriated to the 2025 Major Enterprise Operating, Capital and 37 
Fleet Budget from the following sources of revenue for the City of North Pole Utilities in the 38 
amount indicated to the departments named for the purpose of conducting the business of said 39 
Utility Departments of the City of North Pole, Alaska, for the fiscal year commencing January 1, 40 
2025 and ending December 31, 2025.   A Major Enterprise Fund is used to account for 41 
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise.  42 
  43 



Sponsored by: Mayor Larry Terch III 
Introduced & Advanced: November 4, 2024 

Second Reading: November 18, 2024   
Final Reading & Adoption: December 2, 2024   

 

3 
 

  Mayors 
Recommendations 

Council  
Appropriations 

Fund # Description Revenue  Expenditures Revenues  Expenditures 
25 Utility Fund Fleet 0 0 0 0 
41 Utility Fund Water 1,658,700 1,658,700 1,658,700 1,658,700 
42 Utility Fund Sewer 1,028,800 1,028,800 1,028,800 1,028,800 
43 Utility Capital Projects 29,740 29,740 29,740 29,740 
51 Water Fund Reserves 343,000 343,000 343,000 343,000 
52 Sewer Fund Reserves 174,800 174,800 174,800 174,800 
Total  3,235,040 3,235,040 3,235,040 3,235,040 

 44 
Section 5. There is hereby appropriated to the 2025 North Pole City Budget revenue and 45 
expenditures for the following Capital and Vehicle Replacement-Reserve Funds in the amount 46 
indicated.  The following Funds are committed by Ordinance and can only be used for the 47 
specific purpose as defined by City Code. 48 
 49 
  Mayors 

Recommendations 
Council  

Appropriations 
Fund # Description Revenue  Expenditures Revenues  Expenditures 
20 Capital Projects Reserves 213,355 213,355 213,355 213,355 
21 Admin Fleet Fund 0 0 0 0 
22 Fire Fleet Fund 280,000 280,000 280,000 280,000 
23 Police Fleet Fund 152,000 152,000 152,000 152,000 
24 Public Works Fleet Fund  30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 
Total  675,355 675,355 675,355 675,355 

 50 
Section 6. There is hereby appropriated to the 2025 North Pole City Budget revenue and 51 
expenditures for the following Non-Major Funds in the amounts indicated.  Non-Major Funds 52 
are established to finance a particular activity and are created from receipts of designated and 53 
restricted funds.  54 
 55 
  Mayors  

Recommendations 
Council  

Appropriations 
Fund Description Revenue  Expenditures Revenues  Expenditures 
04 Building Department 258,450 258,450 258,450 258,450 
10 Litigation Fund 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 
12 ABADE- Dept of Justice 32,000 32,000 32,000 32,000 
13 ABADE – State Forfeitures 6,850 6,850 6,850 6,850 
15 Impound Lot 206,000 206,000 206,000 206,000 
Total   518,300 518,300 518,300 518,300 

 56 
57 



Sponsored by: Mayor Larry Terch III 
Introduced & Advanced: November 4, 2024 

Second Reading: November 18, 2024   
Final Reading & Adoption: December 2, 2024   

 

4 
 

Section 7.  There is hereby appropriated to the 2025 North Pole City Budget revenue and 58 
expenditures for the following Debt Service Fund in the amounts indicated.  The Debt Service 59 
Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general 60 
obligation bond and special assessment debt principle, interest and related cost for issuance that 61 
are not accounted for elsewhere.   62 
 63 
Fund Description Mayor 

Recommendation 
Council 

Appropriations 
  Revenue Expenditures  Revenues Expenditures 
3 Assessment Fund 104,750 104,750 104,750 104,750 
Total   104,750 104,750 104,750 104,750 

 64 
Section 8. There is hereby appropriated to the 2025 North Pole City Budget revenue and 65 
expenditures for the following Community Purpose Funds in the amounts indicated.  Community 66 
Purpose Funds are established to finance a particular activity or event and are created from 67 
receipts of designated funds.   68 
 69 
  Mayors  

Recommendations 
Council  

Appropriations 
Fund Description Revenue  Expenditures Revenues  Expenditures 
05 Bed Tax Grant Fund 145,000 145,000 145,000 145,000 
08 North Pole Festival Fund 0 0 0 0 
Total   145,000 145,000 145,000 145,000 
 70 
Section 9.  There is hereby appropriated to the 2025 North Pole City Budget revenue and 71 
expenditures for the following Grant Funds in the amounts indicated.  The Grant Funds are used 72 
to account for the tracking of Grant projects and revenues and expenditures.   73 
 74 
  Mayors  

Recommendations 
Council  

Appropriations 
Fund Description Revenue  Expenditures Revenues  Expenditures 
30 Administration Grants 0 0 0 0 
31 Fire Department Grants 0 0 0 0 
32 Police Department Grants 171,500 171,500 171,500 171,500 
33 Public Works Grants 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 
11 Bryne Jag Grant 138,995 138,995 138,995 138,995 
Total   320,495 320,495 320,495 320,495 

 75 
Section 10.  Supplemental: See appendix 2025 A for the budget breakdown of revenues and 76 
expenditures per individual account line.   77 
 78 

79 



Sponsored by: Mayor Larry Terch III 
Introduced & Advanced: November 4, 2024 

Second Reading: November 18, 2024   
Final Reading & Adoption: December 2, 2024   

 

5 
 

Section 11. Effective date.  This ordinance shall become effective January 1, 2025. 80 
 81 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 82 
__  day of December, 2024.  83 
 84 
 85 
 86 
 87 

        ____________________________ 88 
Mayor LarryTerch III 89 

 90 
ATTEST: 91 
 92 
 93 
_______________  ____________ 94 
Emily Braniff, CMC 95 
City Clerk 96 

PASSED/FAILED 
Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 



 Page 1

Memo 
To: North Pole City Council, Mayor Terch 
From: Chad Heineken, Fire Chief 
Date: 10/29/2024 
Re:   Request to approve dispatching contract renewal 

Mayor and Council Members, 

I am requesting approval from the City Council to renew our current emergency dispatching services contract 
with the Fairbanks Emergency Communication Center (FECC). The existing agreement, which provides 
essential dispatching support for our police, fire, and EMS responses, is set to expire on December 31, 2024. 
This agreement allows for three additional one-year extensions, and both the City of Fairbanks and the City of 
North Pole wish to exercise one of these extension options. 

The renewal term will extend from January 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025, with an annual compensation 
of $259,860.00. The costs of this renewal are split between the budgets of the fire and police departments. All 
other provisions of the original agreement will remain unchanged. 

I recommend that the City Council approve this one-year extension to ensure continuity of our dispatching 
services, which are critical to the safety and well-being of our community. 

Please let me know if there are any questions regarding this request. 



AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY DISPATCHING SERVICES  

 ADDENDUM EXTENSION  

The City of Fairbanks (the City) and City of North Pole (North Pole) are signatories to a one-year 
Agreement for Emergency Dispatching Services for police, fire and EMS response which expires 
on December 31, 2024.  That agreement provides for three additional one-year extensions, and 
the parties desire to exercise the extension option.  

I. PURPOSE:  This addendum serves as a one-year extension to the existing Agreement 
for Emergency Dispatching Services between the City and North Pole for police, and fire 
and EMS responses as provided by the Fairbanks Emergency Communications Center 
(FECC).   
 

II. DURATION OF EXTENSION:  The duration of the extension to this agreement will be one 
year, from January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025. 
 

III. COMPENSATION:  The compensation will reflect the amount of $259,860.00. 
 

IV. All other provisions of the agreement between the City and North Pole remain in effect. 
 
 

City of North Pole     City of Fairbanks 

X
Larry Terch, Mayor

   

X
David Pruhs, Mayor

 

       Attest: 

       

X
D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk

 


	Agenda - November 4, 2024
	Minutes - October 21, 2024
	Unfinished Business
	Ordinance 2024-08
	Fiscal Note Ord 24-08.pdf
	Prepared By: Tricia Fogarty _Date:  October 15, 2024



	New Business
	Ordinance 2024-09
	Request to Council - Contract Renewal




